# Recession Magic:

## Rituals to Improve Your Situation

Spells, Incense, 2ils, Chants, Rituals  $\Delta$ II to help you during these tough times.

by Richard Boettner

Copyright © 2009. All Rights Reserved.

#### Disclaimer

I do not want to mislead people into thinking that by doing any of these rituals you will instantly take care of your money needs. You have to work at it too, you can't just sit around, do a ritual and expect the sky to open up and money will rain down on you.

With that said, rituals can be a powerful addition to build confidence which helps put you in the right frame of mind that will open doors to allow your to receive the money you need in your life. It may not take care of all of your money needs or make you rich beyond belief, but it can put you in a positive state of mind which, like the law of attraction states, brings to you the things you need. It also takes a bit faith and surrender, letting go of the ego, in order for it to work. This does not take the place of hard work or education.

To help you on your quest further, I have links to material to help you with your ritual needs and help teach you how to best handle money, and not allow it to control you.

## Introduction

Magic and Ritual have been with us as long as people have gathered or alone in the country, woods, plains or desserts. Rituals of all kinds have been used for saying thank you, asking for help or assistance, or to give a blessing. Rituals can be lengthy, entailing many stages lasting hours or even days or they can be personal and simple. The last being the most common among all people throughout the world.

A simple personal ritual can be nothing more than being by yourself, finding quiet, lighting a fire or candle with some incense and speaking from the heart. Saying what is on your mind.

This short book is merely an introduction to help you begin creating your own ritual. It will demonstrate how to set up a ritual on which you can build. We are all facing tough times right now and nothing is more comforting than speaking from the heart, without anger, to whomever you see as your higher power and asking for a little help. What follows can easily be expanded and combined with other rituals or things you normally do. Speaking from he heart and feeling a true connection will help in your quest.

Good Luck and Blessing,

**Richard Boettner** 

## Table of Contents

Wiccan Rede	6
Know the Basics	8
WORKING WITH THE MOON	9
BATH SALTS	10
CANDLE MAGIC	11
Centering and Grounding	12
Casting a Circle	13
Pink Bubble	14
Break Free	16
Magick Wish List	17
Abundance from the Huntress	18
Good Luck Charm	20
Aid Me In Financial Difficulty	
To Attract Customers to a Business or Visitors to a Home	22
A Balm for Abundance	23
Prosperity Spell	24
Career Spell	26
In Desperate Need for Money	27
Drawing Money To Fill Your Need	28
Spell To Eliminate Poverty	29
Essential Money Spell	30
To Help in Times of Financial Difficulties	31
To Help Pay Debts	32
Money Drawing	33
Money Charm	34
To Obtain Money	35
Simple Money Spell	36
Urgent Money Spell	37
Afterwards	38

## SENERGE KNOWLEGSE

#### Wiccan Rede

Bide ye Wiccan laws ye must, in perfect love and perfect trust. Live ye must and let to live, fairly take and fairly give.

Form the circle thrice about, to keep unwelcome spirits out. To bind the spell well every time, let the spell be spake in rhyme.

Soft of eye and light of touch, speak ye little, listen much. Deosil go by the waxing Moon, sing and dance the Wiccan rune.

Widdershins go by the waning Moon, chanting out a baleful tune. When the Lady's Moon is new, kiss the hand to her times two.

When the Moon rides at her peak, then the heart's desire seek. Heed the North wind's mighty gale, lock the door and trim the sail.

When the wind comes from the South, love will kiss thee on the mouth. When the Wind blows from the East, expect the new and set the feast.

Nine woods in the cauldron go, burn them quick and burn them slow. Elder be the Lady's tree, burn it not or cursed you'll be.

When the wheel begins to turn, soon the Beltane fires will burn. When the wheel has turned to Yule, light the log the Horned One rules.

Heed ye flower, bush, and tree, by the Lady blessed be. Where the rippling waters flow, cast a stone and the truth you'll know.

When you have a hold and a need,

hearken not to other's greed. With a fool no season spend, nor be counted as his friend.

Merry meet and merry part, bright the cheeks and warm the heart. Mind the threefold law ye should, three times bad and three times good.

When the misfortune is anow, wear the star upon thy brow. True in love you must ever be, lest thy love be false to thee.

These eight words the Wiccan Rede fulfill,

An Ye Harm None, Do What Ye Will.

This is considered by many the law – Harm None! Do what you want in your life as long as no person, no animal, no plant, no part of the environment, and no part of the planet as a whole are harmed. It is an expression of unconditional Love for all things!

## Know the Basics

Know what magick is. Know different ways to raise, direct and ground energy. Know how to cast a circle. Know how to let a circle go, to open it when finished. Know the basic outline of a ritual. Know your Intent or Purpose. What is it you are trying to do? Heal an illness? Increase your concentration? Bring love into your life? Celebrate a Sabbat? Before you begin you should have a firm grasp on what outcome is to be. Know Correspondences. Learn to recognize what feels right for you and use it. If it doesn't feel right, don't use it.

I'm sure people would come up with more, but this is at least a good introduction.

## WORKING WITH THE MOON

#### **Full Moon**

Protection, Love, Healing Purification, Money, Travel and psychic awareness.

#### Full Moon Information

The period of the Full Moon increases the powers of extrasensory perception, and is the proper time to perform lunar goddess invocations, fertility rites, transformations, spirit conjuration's, and spells that increase psychic abilities and prophetic dreams.

#### **Dark Moon**

Introspection, death, void, revelations, spirit.

A dark moon describes the Moon during that time that it is invisible, dark to the naked eye. Duration of a dark moon is between 1.5 and 3.5 days, depending on the orientation of the Earth and Sun.

The dark of the Moon is the most powerful time psychically. It seems to lure us toward our deepest self, longings of the soul, and listening is a deep way to receive messages. It's been compared a dormant seed, or a cocoon holding the butterfly. You may feel tired, or crave solitude. It's important to make space for yourself, any unfolding of the spirit at this time. Like death itself, it's preparation for new beginnings which begins with the crescent.

#### Waxing Moon

This is the time of beginnings, health and healing, fertility, psychic awareness, beauty.

#### Waxing Information

The time from the New Moon through the first quarter to the Full Moon is the proper time to perform healing rituals, positive magick, and spells that increase love, good luck, growth of any kind, sexual desire, and wealth.

#### Waning Moon

Banishment's of habits, addictions, disease and negatives. Jealousy, guilt and hurts are released.

## BATH SALTS

#### The Basics

For bath salt the starting ingredients necessary are:

3 parts Epsom Salts, 2 parts baking soda, 1 part table salt

Colors, food coloring, can be used with your mixtures by adding them drop by drop until the desired color is achieved. You may also add essential oils one drop at a time, mix with a spoon until the salt is scented, just not too strong. Do this while you visualize what you need or the end result. With bath salt recipes there shouldn't be need for more than ten drops of essential Oil per half-cup of bath salts. Make sure you only use only genuine essential oils!

#### **Stress Oils**

10 drops lemon10 drops peppermint20 drops almond extractUse your favorite color with this. These oils can be mixed with bath salts or after mixing a few drops can be added to a soaking bath. Wash your worries away!

#### **Good Luck Bath**

2 parts cypress3 parts patchouli1 part VetivertUse GREEN as the color this is an earth bath and it help to promote money, stability, and foundation.

## **Purification Bath**

3 Parts Geranium2 parts rosemary1 part FrankincenseBathe in this blend to purify body, spirit & soul.

## **Spiritual Bath**

COLOR: Purple 4 parts Sandalwood 2 parts Myrrh 1 part frankincense 1 drop Cinnamon Use to increase your awareness of the Divine, especially before religious rituals.

## CANDLE MAGIC

**1.** One of the simplest of magical arts, under the heading of natural magic. It employs little ritual and few ceremonial objects. The necessary item used in candle magic can be purchased at most stores. The rituals can be practiced in any room in the home, or outdoors.

**2.** Many of us have performed our first candle magick by the time we are one year old by blowing out the candles and making a wish. This is magick in its simplest form.

**3.** The size or shape of the candles is unimportant. Highly decorative, extra large, or unusually shaped candles can at times be useful. Most people prefer to use candles of standard and uniform size.

**4.** Many believe that the candles you use for magick should only be virgin, previously unused, although some disagree – once a candle is used for magick it is always good for magick. Under no circumstance use a candle that has been used on the dinner table, in the bedroom or night-light. Vibrations picked up by secondhand materials may disturb or negate their effectiveness.

**5.** Some people prefer to make their own candles for ritual and magical. You impregnate a candle with your own personal vibration.

**6.** A candle has to be oiled or 'dressed' before use, although some people skip this part and use intent alone – after all our ancestors couldn't afford dressing oil. The purpose of dressing a candle is to establish a psychic link with a primal sensory experience. Candles become an extension of your energy.

7. Best type of oils are natural ones. Some suppliers will even provide candle oils with exotic names.

8. Candles you use can be colored in accordance with the following magickal uses:

- a) White spirituality and peace.
- b) Red health, energy, strength, courage, sexual potency.
- c) Pink love affection and romance.
- d) Yellow intellectualism, imagination, memory and creativity
- e) Green fertility, abundance, good luck and harmony
- f) Blue inspiration, occult wisdom, esoteric knowledge, protection and devotion
- g) Purple Material wealth, higher psychic ability, spiritual power and idealism
- h) Silver clairvoyance, inspiration, astral energy and intuition
- i) Orange ambition. Career matters and the law.

**9.** The simplest form of candle magic is to write down the objective of your ritual on a piece of paper. As you write down what you want to accomplish: a new job, healing for a friend, a change of residence, a new love affair, etc.- visualize your dream coming true. Fold up the paper in a slow fashion. Place the end of the folded paper in the candles flame as you do this concentrate once more on what you want from life.

**10.** When you completed your ritual, allow the candle to completely burn away. You do not need to stay with the candle after the ritual, but make sure it is safe.

## Centering and Grounding

When performing any ritual or to meditate it necessary to allow yourself clear out any doubts and wandering thoughts or mind chatter – self talk. This is centering or grounding. Make sure you are comfortable if you are planning to meditate, then steady your breathing.

### Centering

Center yourself by slowly bringing you awareness inward. Allow any thought to come and go on their own without focusing on any of them. We spend most of our lives focusing outward this may take some practice to become comfortable with the idea. This is also the time when you become most aware of wandering thoughts, things that just pop into your head, like dinner, the meeting next week, and so on. The hardest part, letting these thoughts come then simply setting them aside. It sounds easier than is in the beginning. Some people may even fall asleep. Your goal is to remain awake! Relax enough for meditation but not to fall asleep.

#### Grounding

Grounding is a two part process: first you need to allow any lingering negative thoughts to flow harmlessly away; second give yourself a stable link. One way is to connect to the Earth, Mother Earth, through your feet, or if you are sitting through the base of your spine. See it as a cord or shaft of light of energy from your body which reaches all the way down into the Earth, and a similar cord that reaches up to you, with the two cords intertwining together. This cord allows energy to both nourish and drain down into the Earth. Know that it will be harmlessly disperse anything negative while providing comfort, and the Earth provides stability. A major point to remember, when working magick: if you do not give yourself an outlet for any excess energy you built up, it will remain causing agitation and potential upset. This is why many people cast circles for magickal work or to connect with their higher power. It contains energy until released.

## Casting a Circle

Many societies around the world use circles to connect to their higher power, god, gods, great spirit. Circle have been considered sacred for time immemorial.

A basic casting of a circle would involve a few simple practices. First, a candle is lit either in the center or at each of the cardinal points, four directions with two candles that are placed on an altar. As you walk around the circle; east, north, south, and west, face each direction ask its power to join you.

As you do this at each direction, visualize any aspect that corresponds with that direction such as: East – Wind, South – Flame, West – Rain, and North – Bull of Strength.

As you go around, you can sprinkle plain water, salt water or smoke with incense or sage in each of the quarters saying:

With this Water I purify the (name of direction)! With Fire and Air, I charge the (name of direction)!

You may also want to trace the outline of the circle with a wand, Athame or smoke as you move from point to point. After the final direction has been called, continue facing the center and say:

This circle is now cast!

You are now between worlds – the physical and spiritual. Balance between these worlds is maintained and continues. All things meet here as one.

Then light the altar candles and say:

The fire is lit, 'In perfect Love and perfect trust,' this ritual has begun!

After you have cast the circle, you may want to focus and center in order to put every day worries behind you. A simple meditation.

While the circle is cast, magickal workings can be done with a sense of security and inner peace. Typically, draw on your power by chanting, other people may dance or practice breathing techniques, and once you feel your power has peeked, perform any magick you had intended. Afterwards relax and treat yourself to some quiet time. A break from the usual stressed out mode fast passed world we are in. Once you are finished give thanks, ground the energy and let the circle go by connecting with the earth and let any residual energy in the circle drain deep into the Earth.

A simple explanation which you can build on or keep simple, as your mood strikes you.

## Pink Bubble

This is a very simple meditation and visualization. It was shared with me by a teacher I once had who says she used it anytime she needed to overcome some adversity or obstacle.

Find a quiet spot. Sit or stand, close your eyes if it helps, relax and visualize yourself in a pink bubble. Then focus on what it is you need (someone to volunteer some help, a boss to stop yelling, and so on). Fill the bubble with your wish. Then allow it to rise above your head and let it go just like a balloon. Then go back to whatever you were doing without giving your wish another thought.

People who have done this simple visualization have said that it often doesn't take long for the wish to come true, as long as it was reasonable, made without anger or any further influence from them. Many said they often forgot they had done this until some time after their wish had come true. That is magick in its simplest form.

## 

## Break Free

If you're caught between what you feel is right and what others tell you to be or do, try this spell to find strength within to break free.

On a New or Full Moon, gather the ingredients below and go to a place where you can be undisturbed for at least 30 minutes or more.

#### Ingredients:

Some object or material that is tangled and/or weaved into a complex pattern, or resembling a cobweb and scissors.

#### The Spell

Cast your circle and center yourself. Take the mangled object you've chosen and meditate on the complex patterns and jumbled look of their form. Say this:

Tangled and twisted, My mind and my life With connections to all I see. I now break free from those that aren't right, And replace the holes that there be. I change the bad and replace with good, And mend and heal and spin, With the help of the weaver of the web of life, I escape and am now set free.

While saying the above, cut the mangled object apart, imagining the situation breaking free from the negative influences that affect your judgment and life. Either bury or burn the negative energies. Then sit relaxed letting all go knowing it will resolve itself.

## Magick Wish List

To make a magick wish list sit back and think about the material things you need for about 15 minutes. Really evaluate them, discarding what is not truly necessary, selecting only those things that you must have and truly need. Then write out a spell, asking in the name of a higher source for the items you need. List a candle and some incense, sage or other pleasant thing that produces smoke. List them by reading the list out loud. By reciting the list more than once you are charging your intentions with vocal vibrations and the projection is fortified with magickal energy. Burn the list or carry it with you or keep it in a place that holds magick for you.

I often advise people to get what call a god (or goddess box) box, made of wood, stone or some other material you like, and place in an area that has significance or altar. When I have a wish or something I need my higher power to read, I write it out on a piece of paper and with full intention place it in this box knowing the message will be passed along. Messages can be prayers, chants, thank yous, or plea for help. Once in the box it can stay there until the next time you really need to use the box at which point the previous message is removed without reading it and the new one placed inside. Old messages can be placed somewhere so in the future you can reread them, just not anytime near a new message was written, or they can be burned, or buried.

Simple is sometimes most powerful.

## Abundance from the Huntress (Artemis)

#### **Supplies:**

Incense of your choice Chalice or cup filled with (Spring) Water A dish filed with Dirt A chunk of Pliable Clay A Stylus, Pen or Nail to draw in the clay String 13 thin Green Ribbons, 13 inches long 13 Tiny Bells One Green Candle

#### **Instructions:**

Call on Artemis, asking for her assistance. Light the incense and candle. With your hands, form a wolf out of part of the clay while thinking of abundance and prosperity moving in to your life. With the rest of the clay, form three arrows. Carve your name with the stylus on the belly of the wolf. Then carve your desire, using either words or pictures on the arrows. After the clay dries, sprinkle with a few drops of the spring water and the dirt, asking Spirit to bless you with abundance and prosperity. Envision the wolf and arrows glowing with health and life. Pass the wolf and arrows over the flame of the candle 3 times. Hold the wolf and arrows close to your mouth and blow on the images 3 times with long, flowing breaths. Then say:

I call upon thee, O gracious Artemis, Queen of the moon, goddess of wisdom. I dedicate this rite to you. I ask for blessings Upon this sacred wolf and these arrows That I have created with my own hands. When I leave this wolf and the arrows In my yard (or the forest), this wolf will draw Into my life and abundance of prosperity, Healing, and harmony. The arrows are my gift To Artemis, that she may continue to enjoy Her wild hunt with the golden bow As her familiar wolf runs by her side. I affirm my right to prosperity. So Mote It Be!"

You can sing, hum or meditate, thinking positive thoughts while holding the wolf. Try chanting the many names of Artemis:

Artemis, Diana, Devana-Tauro, Artios, Dea Abnoba (\*You may select any of her names or string them together in a chant).

Tie a bell on the end of each ribbon. Tie the ribbons together, intoning the Artemis chant, then tie the ribbons securely around the belly of the wolf. When you have finished, extinguish the candle. Thank deity for assisting you. Release the circle. Take the water from the chalice, the dirt, your clay wolf and

arrows, and walk in to our yard. Chant the clay animal (with the string wrapped securely around its stomach) and hang from a tree. Pour the water and the dirt at the base of the tree beside the small arrows you will leave there as your offering. Ask for one final blessing, knowing that prosperity and harmony will manifest within the month. Call to the gnomes saying:

Gnomes of the wood Treasure abound Bring me wealth from Artemis ground. Leave the wolf in the tree

#### To enhance this spell (chose the best one):

Perform on a New Moon In the Hour of Jupiter or on a Sunday or Thursday Perform at Midnight Perform when the Moon is in Sagittarius Perform during the Hunter s Moon Perform at Mabon (Fall Equinox)

## Good Luck Charm

#### **Needed Items:**

Apache tear 7 star anise seeds 4 inch square of yellow fabric 7 inches of gold ribbon

Place the Apache tear in the center of the fabric. Add the star anise seeds one at a time while chanting:

> One for luck, Two for money, Three for favor, Four for honey. Five for old, And Six for new. Seven having success In all that I do.

Draw up the ends of the cloth and tie the pouch with the gold ribbon. Carry the charm in your pocket or on your person. Good luck will follow

## Aid Me In Financial Difficulty

#### Materials:

Green Candle Purple Candle Sage Oil Scribing tool such as a exacto knife, athame or kitchen knife

On a Thursday (you can do it on any day but Thursday is associated with Power, Success, Fame, Wealth etc)

Begin by meditating as you normally do, in addition I always use white light as a protection around my circle before I cast any spells. Inscribe on your candles money symbols, Success, Wealth. Begin inscribing at the bottom of the candle, rotating it to the left in a spiral method. So your inscriptions will rotate up to the right and around. While you inscribe your candles, visualize your goals; see yourself succeeding be clear on what you want. Rub your candle with the Sage oil from the bottom up while asking for what you want.

Ask the Earth (As an element) to grant your spell use words that are meaningful for you. I face North and light the candles:

By the power of the Earth and the Grace of her body I ask for Success in obtaining wealth I ask that I be given focus and ability To earn with love and light on this Thursday Night I thank thee spiritually, Emotionally, mentally and physically As it harm none So Mote it Be

You may also burn incense alone or in combination Honeysuckle, pine, musk, cedar, patchouli or jasmine in honor of earth. While the Candles burn, continue to meditate and or visualize your specific goals or you may visualize the earth guiding you to success.

## To Attract Customers to a Business or Visitors to a Home

## Two very simple herbal forms of magick.

Make a fine powder out of some basil leaves and sprinkle them around the main entrance to home office or place of business. It is believed that only good and friendly people will enter, since it supposedly repels those who intend harm toward the workers of a business or the occupants of a home.

Cinnamon powder is also used to attract money. The powder can be burned like incense or to dust the entrance to a business or even tossed into the air when thinking about customers coming your way.

## A Balm for Abundance

To make a useful balm, blend a small jar of cold cream together with the following:

2 drops of green food coloring
2 teaspoons rose water
1 teaspoon almond extract
1/4 teaspoon powdered clove
1 teaspoon mint extract
1 tablespoon of honey

Beat the ingredients until well incorporated, always stirring clockwise for growing, positive energy.

#### Stir and chant:

"I leave my life no more to chance, I evoke the power of abundance!"

Visualize your needs being met. Make a label for the preparation that states its purpose Bounteous Balm," for example. Use this cream on pulse points or areas of dry skin to bring revitalization physically, spiritually, and financially. If you can't find rose water, substitute dried, powdered rose petals or scented oil.

#### Use For:

Improving finances, increasing ideas or creativity, spiritual growth, and flourishing magical gardens.

#### **Timing:**

Generally during the waxing to full moon. During moon signs of Taurus, Cancer, Virgo, or Pisces. Spring specifically April and May).

## Prosperity Spell

This spell is best worked on a Sunday or a Thursday during the waxing moon.

### Tools:

Cauldron with burning charcoal inside Basil, chamomile and sage (all are herbs associated with prosperity) Cup of water Dish of salt or earth Athame or wand

Cast the circle however you choose.

Invite the Lord and Lady to your circle in whatever manner is most comfortable to you.

Cast the herbs onto the burning charcoal while visualizing your goal - whether it be bills that you need to pay or whatever reason you are seeking financial help.

Sprinkle a few drops of water and salt or earth upon the charcoal.

As you move your athame or wand over the cauldron clockwise, to blend the energies, say:

"By the powers of air, fire, water and earth, I release this spell. I ask for Divine guidance as I seek help this day. With harm to none, this spell be done."

Spend a few moments in meditation, visualizing the smoke from the cauldron carrying the energies out of the circle and into the universe.

Thank the Lord and Lady for the assistance in your magickal working.

Release the circle.

Ground and center yourself.

## MONEY RITUALS

## Career Spell

The native people of California revered the oak as their "world tree," the acorn symbolizing the cosmic egg, from which all life came, and the tree itself symbolizing the cosmic axis, sacred to Earth Mother. The acorn represents achievement and great effort; the oak tree represents durability, resolution, and truth. A Thursday with a waxing moon is ideal for starting this spell.

#### You will need:

A green candle A piece of green paper 2 acorns A silver coin

On a Thursday morning, light the green candle. Close your eyes and imagine the candle's light holding you in a safe cocoon. Write your name on a piece of paper; followed by any ambitions you have for your career. Extinguish the candle, and keep it to use later. For the whole of the day, keep the acorns, silver coin, and paper in a pocket or pouch close to you. On returning home from work, light the candle again, and pass the acorns and silver swiftly through its flame. Wrap the acorns and silver coin in the paper and bury them in your garden, or another favorite spot. Repeat this spell at yearly intervals for continuing career success.

## In Desperate Need for Money

If you find you are desperately in need of a little money, chant this phrase a few times.

"Trinka-five"

The money will appear just before you need it, and I do mean need, not just want!

When placing coins, pocket change, in a jar or bowl each day, say this:

Trinka five, trinka five, trinka five, money grow, money thrive, money multiply. Trinka five, trinka five.

Repeat this more than once if would like. If you separate your coins by denomination then say it for each denomination if your would like.

## Drawing Money To Fill Your Need

#### **Items Needed:**

1 Green Candle Bayberry Oil Drawing Oil Alter Cleansing Oil

Wait till Full Moon. Evening is best, when your home is quiet and you can be alone to focus. Make your circle as usual. Cleanse green candle with Altar Cleansing Oil, focus on the white light entering your crown chakra and going through your body and entering the candle from your hands.

Anoint candle with Bayberry and Drawing oil. Start from the center with your left hand going up and your right hand going down the candle. While anointing say

"Lovely Goddess of the Moon, Send to me your wealth real soon, Silver rays you do shine, Let good fortune be mine. As it is above it is below, This I ask please make it so."

Repeat as many times as necessary. Place candle on a fireproof surface and allow to burn out. Please do not leave candles unattended.

## Spell To Eliminate Poverty

Not exactly a money ritual, but eliminating poverty allows money to flow inward.

## **Ingredients:**

Sugar Salt Rice Open safety pin

Based on a New Orleans voodoo formula, this spell will insure that you always have the staples in life. Fill a bowl with equal parts sugar, salt, and rice. Place an open safety pin in its center. Keep the bowl out in the open to eliminate poverty.

## Essential Money Spell

Around campfires or in their sunny vardos the Romanies invoked spells to bring prosperity. The following spell has been popular for centuries; in the past, coins of an earlier date were used, preferably gold.

#### **Instructions:**

Take five short green candles and ten quarters. Rinse the coins in warm salt water. Set five saucers in a circle and place one coin in the center of each saucer. With a little melted wax, securely fix a lighted candle on top of each coin. Distribute the five remaining coins inside the circle so that they form a five-pointed star with the apex facing away from you.

#### Say aloud:

I need [amount of money] immediately.

Imagine green and purple five-pointed starlight glowing from the candle flames. Imagine coins cascading from the flames for several minutes.

Let the candles burn out naturally.

Provided your need is genuine, a windfall should be on its way.

When it arrives, make sure you say thank you to the mystic world.

## To Help in Times of Financial Difficulties

With clove or cinnamon oil, trace a money symbol or rune on the largest denomination of bill that you have. Put this in your wallet and resist spending it for as long as you can. Every time you look at the bill, visualize the rune to reinforce its power.

## To Help Pay Debts

Take the key to a strong box and go to a country crossroads at midnight during the full moon. Lay the key in the middle of the crossroads and walk in a circle around it three times to the left and three times to the right, chanting:

"Forces around me take pity on my foolishness and grant me a second chance to unlock my future and unburden me."

Take the key home and put in on your key chain.

## Money Drawing

A very simple form of magick.

## You will need:

2 pennies

On the new moon, place one penny in each shoe or sock and wear them every day. When the moon is full, wear your coin that day, then at night place them in the full light of the moon (if wont matter if it is cloudy). The very next morning, place your pennies in you coin jar so you don't spend them.

This will bring money toward you, maybe not always in large amounts or make your rich, but it pulls money in your direction, just keep an eye out for it because it could be as simple as finding money laying in the street. You may do this as often you would like.

## Money Charm

With a green marker or crayon, draw a money symbol (\$) on a piece of paper. Set atop of it a green candle and say this charm:

Flibberty, gibberty, flasky flum, Calafa, tarada, wagra wum. Hooky, maroosky, whatever's the sum, Heigho! Presto! Money come!

Allow the candle to burn itself out, or allow the candle to burn each night for a week. The paper is then to be folded in half four times and tied with a green string. This charm is to be carried with you for a week.

## To Obtain Money

On a Friday during the Waxing Moon anoint a green candle with appropriate money-drawing oil, such as Patchouli, Jasmine, or Cinnamon. Charge the candle and place in a holder on your altar. Place a brand new shiny penny in front of the holder, and then surround the holder with three green aventurine gemstones. Repeat the following chant 3 times:

"Money, money come to me, (\$100 or whatever you need) is what I need! With harm to none and help to many, multiply now this shiny penny!"

Now light your candle and gaze into its flame, strongly visualizing the needed money coming to you. Continue with this visualization for as long as possible. After the candle has burned down completely, bury any remaining wax on your property and carry the penny with you to reinforce your magickal intention.

## Simple Money Spell

### Items needed:

green candle with rune symbol of money and prosperity etched in the side cinnamon oil objects that represent money( jewelry, coins, dollar bills, etc.)

#### Instructions:

Anoint the candle with the oil, and place in candle holder. Place the items that represent money in a circle around the candle. Light the candle and visualize a green mist or light coming from the flame. In the mist or light visualize silver coins floating around. Now use your hands and grab as many coins as possible. Finally, chant the following:

Rich I'll be, money and prosperity come hither to me.

Let the candle burn out.

## Urgent Money Spell

The Romanies say that when money is urgently needed by a certain date, this spell works wonders. One thing to remember: it must be performed at the witching hour of midnight.

Take one white votive candle to represent each \$100 or \$1,000 that you critically need. Stand them on a plate you often eat from. At a quarter to midnight, sit in a room with no electric lights. Light gold or silver, green or white candle (not one of those representing money). This is the candle that will give power to the "money" votive candles and will enable you to see what you are doing. Now work your magic. Pray for a circle of gold light to be placed around you for protection and for a circle blue light to be placed around you for healing. Pick up a votive candle and light it from the main candle flame. As you do so, say that the votive you are lighting represents the \$100, or \$1,000, you need. Place it on the plate to begin a circle of money candles. Light each votive, and say the same words for each, until the circle in complete. Say a prayer explaining that you are not being greedy; that the money is necessary. Leave the candles to burn out of their own accord. The money should start winging its way to you.

## Afterwards

All the magick in the world will not work for you unless you are without greed or harm to anyone. Also, proper intention makes all the difference.

If your heart if filled with a sense of lacking, is absent of love or kindness, none of these spells will work. Too often people will a spell out of desperation and then wonder why it isn't working. Let go of everything, surrender and do your magick without anything more than just a deep desire that you are humbly asking for help. Wanting millions to fall from the sky why what you need is \$150 to help pay the bill will not make the millions show up. No matter how much you visualize the million dollars.

Be humble. Just ask and allow the universe, spirit, the gods to help. Never demand anything.

Here's wishing you abundance,

Richard Boettner.

#### **Recommended Reading:**

Candle Magick

Pagan Magick

Wiccan Magick

Earth Magick

Spirituality

Ritual

and more ...

(links will take you to an Amazon supported site)